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Independent Auditor’s Repott

To the Members of Global Health Patliputra Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Global Health Patliputra Private Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023,
and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (TCAT’) together with the
ethical requirements that ate relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is silfﬁcient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. '

Chartered Accountants : Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered with
L limited liability with identification number
Offices in Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chennal, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbai, New Delhi, Noida and Pune AAC-2085 and its registered office at L-41

Connaught Circus, New Delhi, 110001, India



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Global Health Patliputra Private Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditot’s Report thetreon

The Company’s Boatrd of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Director’s Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor’s report. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditot’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLLP

Independent Auditor’s Repott to the members of Global Health Patliputra Private Limited on the
financial statements for the yeat ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

As patt of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of matetial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
etror, design and petform audit procedutes responsive to those tisks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
maisstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errot, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgety, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ot the override of internal control;

¢  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
ate approptiate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)()) of the Act we are also responsible for
exptessing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls; '

e Hvaluate the approptiateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management; . o ' ' o '

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Ditectors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concetn. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s repott to the
related disclosutes in the financial statements or, if such disclosures ate inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s repott. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as going concern; and - -

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
‘disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the undetlying transactions and events ina
“mannet that achieves fair presentation. ST - T

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among othet matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit. I PR T SR

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on out audit, we report that the Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable. . : SRR

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order)) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexuore A, statement on the matters specified

in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as tequited by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
tepott, to the extent applicable, that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessaty for the putpose of our audit of the accotnpanying financial statements;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Global Iealth Patliputra Private Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

%)
d)

£)

Charterad Accountants

The financial statements dealt with by this repott are in agreement with the books of account;

In out opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act;

On the basis of the written reptesentations received from the ditectors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the ditectors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with refetence to financial statements of
the Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such conttols, refer to our separate
Repott in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other mattegs to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us: o '

i, The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position as at
31 March 2023.; ' . L I

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including detivative contracts for which there -
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023; ' S

jii, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company duting the year ended 31 Match 2023; '

iv.  (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note
43(iv) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned ot invested (either from
botrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources ot kind of funds) by the Cotpany to or
in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding,
whethet recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons ot entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, secutity or the like on behalf the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; ST ' S '

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note
43(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s)
ot entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing ot otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly o indirectly, lend ot invest
in other persons ot entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Patty
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security ot the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to out notice that has caused us to believe that the management
representations undet sub-clauses (2) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

v.  'The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023; and




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Global Health Patliputra Private Limited on the
financial statements for the yeat ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

vi.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use
accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software
which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and
accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended)
is not applicable for the current financial year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Rajni Mundra
Partner
Membership No.: 058644

UDIN: 28058644BGXZOP4736

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 May 2023
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditot’s Report of even date to the members
of Global Health Patliputra Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Tn terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we repost
that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of propetty, plant and equipment and right of use assets.

The Combany has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.
pany prop g P &

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its propexty, plant and equipment
and tight of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a
period of two years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties whete the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly,
repotting under clause 3({)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the yeat. '

(¢) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules
made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during
the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such vetification by the management is
appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were
noticed as compated to book records. '

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of cuttent assets at any point of time during the yeat. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(i)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. '

(iif) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or secutity or granted any
loans ot advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, fitms, Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLPs) ot any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within
the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Ozder is not applicable to the
Company.
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Annexute A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the membets
of Global Health Patliputra Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(cont’d)

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s business activities. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii)(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further,
no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred to
in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute.

(viif)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix)(a) Accordingly to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from
the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any govetnment authority.

(¢) Tn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way of
term loans wete applied for the purposes for which these were obtained, though idle/surplus funds which
wete not required for immediate utilisation have been invested in readily realisable liquid investments.

(d)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
raised any funds on short term basis duting the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the
Otder is not applicable to the Company.

(€) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(x)(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b)During the year, the Company has made private placement of shares. In out opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the requirements of section 42
and section 62 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder with respect to the same. Further, the amounts
so raised have been utilized by the Company for the purposes for which these funds were raised.
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Annexute A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditot’s Report of even date to the members
of Global Health Patliputta Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(cont’d)

(xi)(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered
by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by
the auditors in Forni ADT-4 as presctibed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the
year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiif) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into
by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act. The details of such
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 as presctibed under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to constitute an audit committee under section
177 of the Act.

(xiv)(a)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an internal
audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act which is commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

(b)We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period
under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(2) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(2),(b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d)Based on the information and explanations given to us and as reptesented by the management of the
Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Resetve Bank) Directions, 2016) does

not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year but had incurred cash losses
amounting to Rs. 3,632.53 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year. :

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in Patagraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Repott of even date to the members
of Global Health Patliputta Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(cont’d)

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, -our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and
management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall-due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We ‘however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the criteria as
specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Otder is not
applicable to the Company.

(xxi) 'The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under
this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

GXM MM.A."”

Rajni Mundra
Partner
Membership No.: 058644

UDIN: 28058644BGXZ0OP4736

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 May 2023
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Global Health
Patliputta Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

3

Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act)

In conjunciion with our audit of the financial statements of Global Health Patliputra Private Limited (‘the
Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Chatged with Governance fot Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Ditectors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAT). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely prepatation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Refetence to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAIL Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves petforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that 2 material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Annexute B to the Independent Auditot’s Report of even date to the membets of Global Health
Patliputra Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 Match 2023 (cont’d)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessaty to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Refetence to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
ot fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Walket Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

v-al'»-.\'. - N "‘MA-L
Rajni Mundra

Partner
Membership No.: 058644

UDIN: 28058644BGXZ0OP4736

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 May 2023
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Global Health Padiputra Private Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023

ASSETS
Non-cuarrent assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital wotk-in-progress
Right of use assets
Intangible assets
Financial assets

Other financial assets
Income-tax assets (net)
QOther non-current assets
‘Total non-current assets

Current assets

Tnventories

Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash cquivalents
Other bank balances
Other financial assets

Other current assets

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity

‘Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Habilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Gther non-current liabilities
‘Total non-current liabilitics

Current liabilities

Financial liabilitics
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities

Other current labilities

Provisions

Total current liabilitics

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Notes

T2
Tk

94
1
124

14
15
16
90
12 B

17 A
17B

18 A
19 A
20 A
21 A

18 B
198

227
228
23

21 B
208

As at
31 March 2023

As at

31 March 2022

(X in lakhs)

(¥ in lakhs)

12,457.20 22,576.50
9,326.05 24,844.58
6,380.93 6,64313

137.22 124.15
500.83 187.51
156.15 1017
217.94 331.20
59,176.41 54,917.24
578.66 33679
466.26 219
2,526.35 293740
746.81 703.03
190.18 112.66
192.13 114.54
4,700.39 4,208.61

63,376.30 59,125.85

30,440.74 29,700.00
(9,900.77) (8,324.01)

20,530.97 21,375.99

29,246.22 25,867.23
8,011.53 7732.2%

92.76 19.26
139.22 -
37,489.73 33,648.77

736.07 407.10
178.90 149.69
196.53 60.03
1,863.92 748.24
1,786.92 1,759.36
234.24 12583
550.52 550.84
5,847.10 4,101.09
43,336.83 37,740.86
63,876.80 59,125,85

The accompanying notes to the financial statements including summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Avcoantacts
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Royvs A
Rajni

Partner
Membership No : 058644

undra

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr, N
Director
[PTN:00012148)

sh Trehan

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2023

Om Pr% Choubey

Company Secreiary
M) Hepzond b

Place: Guragram
Date: 26 May 2023

/

P W

SanjeeviKumar
Director
|DIN:07060417]

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2023

\‘\C\\.\,s_ P,z_:‘ ¢

Hans Raj Saraswat
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Patna
Date: 26 May 2023



Global Health Patliputra Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Retainers and consultants fee

Other expenses

Loss before tax
Tax expenses
Loss after tax

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share
Basic earning per share (%)
Diluted earning per share (%)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(X in lakhs) (¥ in lakhs)
24 16,946.07 2377.29
25 124.08 213.37
17,070.15 2,590.66
26A 2,915.48 62051
26B 370.87 3171
26C (48.92) (23.93)
27 3,034.78 1,289.10
28 2,193.26 1,163.51
29 2,464.82 64042
30A 4,800.05 1,674.80
308 428277 1,775.84
20,0131 7,171.96
(2,942.96) (4,581.30)
31 s .
(2,942.96) (4,581.30)
10.69 0.34)
10,69 (0.34)
(,932.27) (@,581.64)
32
0.98) (1.88)
0.98) (1.88)

"The accompanying notes to the financial statements including summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of

these financial statements.

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Rajni Mundra

Partner
Membership No.: 058644

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Naresh Trehan
Director
[DIN:00012148)

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2023

o

Om PraRash Choubey
Company Secretary

M.u»_@o:ﬂ@

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2023

/

N o R

Sanjeev Kumar
Director
[DIN:07060417]

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2023

Yo, L S

Hans Raj Saraswat
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Patna

Date: 26 May 2023
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Global Health Patliputra Private Limited
Statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2023

A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:
Interest income
Depreciation on property, plnt and equipment
Depreciation on right of use asscts
Amortization of intangible assets
Interest on borrowings
Tnterest on lease liabilities
Other borrowing costs
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment {ncf)
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain)
Provision for employee benefits (net)
Opearting profit/ (loss) before working capital changes

Movement in working capital
Other current assets
Trade receivables
Inventories
Other financial assets
Other current linbilities
Other curcent financial liabilities
Trade payables
Cash flows from/(used in) operations
Income-tax paid
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property plant and equipments, capital work-in-progress and intangible assets
(including capital advances, capital creditors and deferred payment liabilities)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Movement in bank deposits (net)

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Praceeds from issuc of cquity share capital (including sccurities premium)

Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid on borrowing

Interest paid on lease liabilitics

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net (decreasc) /increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 15):

Balances with banks in current accounts
Cash on hand

“The accompanying notes to the financial statements including summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

statements.

This is the statement of cash flow referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Roos W™
Rajni'®Mundra

Partner
Membership No.: 0586:-4

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 May 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(% in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
(2,942.96) (4,581.30)
(47.99) (44.30)
2,304.63 601.00
130.89 33.64
29.30 578
1,404.76 392.21
774.65 746.09
13.84 25.21
- @M
313.29 (150.57)
43.19 46.23
2,023,60 (2,928.75)
(77.59) (112.52)
(464.07) (2.19)
(241.86) (333.97)
(77.52) (102.27)
108.41 92.13
3.73 492
1,252.18 777.20
2,526.88 (2,605.45)
(145.98) (5.39)
2,380.90 (2,610 84)
(5,057.83) (12,416.31)
= 75.57
(355.10) 93.22
47.99 41.30
(5,364.94) (12,389.67)
2,000.00 10,200.00
3,500.00 8,130.91
(324.42) -
(2,136.40) (1,632.12)
(466.19) (437.74)
2,572.99 16,261.04
(411.05) 1,260.53
2,937.40 1,676.87
2,526.35 2,937.40
2,507.29 202577
19.06 11.63
2,526.35 2,937.40

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors

Df. Waresh Trehan
Director
[DIN:00012148]

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2023

Om Pl%h Choubey

Company Sceretary

M Keoggoedb

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2023

information are an integral part of these financial
gral pi

Ry Ca—

Sanjeev Kumar

Director

[DIN:07060417]

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2023

\‘\(5 Ly
Hans Raj

aswat

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Patna
Date: 26 May 2023
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Global Health Patliputra Private Limited
Statement of changes in cquity for the year ended 31 March 2023

A Equity share capital* @® in lakhs)

Particulars Opening balance as at |  Changes in equity Balance as at Opening balance as | Changes in equity Balance as at
1 April 2021 share capital during 31 March 2022 at 1 April 2022 share capital during| 31 March 2023
the year the year
Equity share capital 19,500.00 10,200.00 29,700.00 29,700.00 T40.74 30,440.74
B Other equity** (% in lakhs)
Particulars Capital contribution Rescrves and surplus Taotal
from the Holding
Company Sccuritics premium | Retained eamnings

Balance as at 1 April 2021 200.00 - (4,588.92) (4,388.92)
Loss for the year - - (4,581.30) (4,581.30)
Other comprehensive income

Re-measurement Joss on defined benefit plans (net of tax) - (0.34) 0.3
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (4,581,64) (4,581.64)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Corporate guarantee received from the Holding Company 646.55 - - 646.55
Balance as on 1 April 2022 846.55 - (9,170.56) (8,324.01)
Loss for the year - - (2,942.96) (2,942.96)
Other comprehensive income

Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans (nct of tax) - - 10.69 10.69
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (2,932.27) (2,932.27)
‘Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Issue of equity shares - 1,259.26 - 1,259.26

Corporate guarantee received from the Holding Company 96.25 - - 96.25
Balance as at 31 March 2023 942.80 1,259.26 (12,102,83) (9,900.77)

*Refer note 17A for details
**Refer note 17B for details

The accompanying notes to the financial statements including summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of these fAnancial statements.

This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

R & .
byt bl

Partner
Membership No.: 0580644

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Naresh Trehan
Director
[DIN:00012148]

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2023

e

Sanjeev Kumar
Director
|DIN:07060417)

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2023

A /\\_—-;__
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Company Sceretary Chief Financial Officer

M He 2665 &

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2023

Place: Patna
Date: 26 May 2023




Global Health Patliputta Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements fot the year ended 31 March 2023

Background

Global Health Patliputra Private Limited (‘the Company’) is engaged in the business of providing healthcare services.
The Company is domiciled in India and its registered office is situated at E — 18, Defence Colony, New Delhi —
110024. The Company has entered into a concession agreement with the Health Department, Government of Bihar
for the development, operation and maintenance of supet- speciality hospital on public private partnership mode in
Patna, Bihar. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiaty of Global Health Limited (formetly known as Global health
Private limited) (the ‘Holding Company’).

General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referted to as
the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act)
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of
the Act.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26 May 2023. The revision to financial statements is permitted by Board of Ditectors after obtaining
necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting ptinciples

; : prep n going ith 2 g princip
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
certain financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair value.

Recent accounting pronouncement
Amendment to Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide notification dated 31 March 2023, has issued an amendment to Ind
AS 1 which requires entities to disclose material accounting policies instead of significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information considered together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions of primary users of general putpose financial statements. The amendment also
clarifies that immaterial accounting policy information does not need to be disclosed. If it is disclosed, it should not
obscure material accounting information. The Company is evaluating the requirement of the said amendment and
its impact on these financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Etrots

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide notification dated 31 March 2023, has issued an amendment to Ind
AS 8 which specifies an updated definition of an ‘accounting estimate’. As per the amendment, accounting estimates
are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to measutement uncertainty and certain
measurement techniques (viz. estimation techniques, valuation techniques, etc) and inputs are used to develop such
estimates. The Company is evaluating the requirement of the said amendment and its impact on these financial
statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide notification dated 31 March 2023, has issued an amendment to Ind
AS 12, which requires entities to recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal
amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences. This will typically apply to transactions such as leases of
lessees and decommissioning obligations and will require recognition of additional deferred tax assets and liabilities.
"The Company is evaluating the requirement of the said amendment and its impact on these financial statements.




6.1

Global Health Patliputta Ptivate Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Curtent verses non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-cutrent as per the Company’s operating cycle and
other critetia set out in Division IT of Schedule IIT of the Act. Based on the nature of the operations and the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the putpose of current/non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases
summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comptises purchase price, borrowing
cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the putchase price. Propetty, plant and
equipment purchased on deferred payment basis are recorded at equivalent cash price. The difference between the
cash price equivalent and the total payment is recognised as interest expense over the period until payment is made.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent costs ate included in the asset’s catrying amount or recognised as a sepatate asset, as approptiate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repair and mamtenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss
as incurred.

Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment ate recognised as property, plant and
equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, such items are classified as
inventory.

Capital work-in-progress includes property, plant and equipment under construction and not ready for intended use
as on the balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
econommic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and usefirl lives)

All items of property, plant and equipment are subsequently measuted at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impaitment losses. Depreciation on propetty, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, computed on
the basis of useful lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule IT to the Act.

Asset class Useful life
Building 30 years
Medical equipments 5 to 15 years
Medical and sutgical instruments 3 yeats
Other plant and equipment 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Information Technology (IT) equipment | 3 to 6 yeats
Office equipment 5 years
Electrical installation 10 years
Vehicles 6 to 8 years

The residual values, useful lives and s depreciation of are = the end of each financial year.
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6.3

Global Health Patliputta Ptivate Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets (software) are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comptises purchase price, borrowing cost
if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use.

Subsequent measurement
The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period of five years from the date of its acquisition.

De-recognition

Intangible asset is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits ate expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain ot loss atising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is
derecognised.

Leases
Company as a lessee — Right of use assets and lease liabilities

A lease 1s defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for
a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

Classification of lases

The Company enters into leasing arrangements for vatious assets. The assessment of the lease is based on several
factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to
extend/purchase etc.

Recognition and initial measurement of right of use assets

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet.
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any
initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end
of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives
received).

Subsequent measurenent of right of use assets

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the
carlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses
the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

Lease liabilities

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the
Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made
up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) and variable payments based on an index or rate.
Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is
re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.
When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset. Variable
lease payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers
those payments occurs.

The Company has elected to account for shott-term leases using the practical expedients. Instead of tecognising a
right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these short-term leases are recognised as an expense
in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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6.7

Global Health Patliputta Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per effective interest rate (EIR). Borrowing costs directly attriburable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying assct are capitalized during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other botrowing costs are expensed in
the period they occur.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. Cost is calculated on weighted average basis.
Cost of these inventories comprises of all cost of purchase, taxes and other costs incurted in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost of purchased inventory is determined after deducting rebates and
discounts.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinaty course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition and other income

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to custoters/patients in an atmount
that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenue
is measured at transaction price net of rebates, discounts and taxes. A receivable is tecognised by the Company when
the controlis transferred as this is the case of point in time recognition where consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required. When either party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the
contract in the balance sheet as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the
entity’s performance and the payment. No significant element of financing is deemed present as the sales are either
made with a nil credit term or with a credit period of 0-90 days. The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria
to each component of the revenue transaction as set out below.

Income from bealthcare services

Revenue from healthcare services is recognized as and when related services are rendered. The Company considers
the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction
price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the setvices,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect taxes).

Tncomse from sale of pharmacy products to out-patients

Revenue from sale of pharmacy products to out-patients is recognized as and when products are sold. The Company
considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The
transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the
products, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect taxes).

Tnterest income
Interest income is recognised on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Other income
Revenue atising from revenue sharing agreements is recognized as per the terms of the arrangement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered
as a cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash
generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount atre written down to the
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s ot cash generating unit’s net selling price and its
value in use. Value in use is the presentyalue of estimated future ¢ ws expected to atise from the continuing
use of an asset and from its dispo<al ReMo e i
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Global Health Patliputra Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may
no longer exist or may have decteased.

Foteign cuttency

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statement of the Company are measured using the cuttency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements have been prepared
and presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign cutrency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using
the closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences atising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different
from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in
which they atise.

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fzir value adjusted for transaction costs, except
for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement
of profit and loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt insttuments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether
the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCP).

Non-derivative financial assets

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets cattied at amortised cost — A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

¢ The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows;
and

* Contractual terms of the asset give tise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

De-recognttion of financial assets
A financial asset is de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired ot
the Company has transfetred its tights to receive cash flows from the asset.




Global Health Patliputra Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yeat ended 31 March 2023

Non-detivative financial liabilities

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective catrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and thete is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency ot
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterpatty.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially at fair value and adjusted with underlying borrowings as
transaction costs. Subsequently, the balance is amortised basis cffective intetest rate method to the statement of
profit and loss.

6.10Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets and
the impairment methodology depends on whether thete has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires
measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses
are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
mnstrument.

Other financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount
equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life
of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compates the risk of a default occutring on the financial
asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort,
that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to
have low credit risk at the balance sheet date

6.11Taxes

Tax expense comptises cutrent and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognised in statement of profit and
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income,

The curtrent income-tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted ot substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting petiod. Management periodically evaluates positions taken seturns with respect to situations




Global Health Patliputta Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Match 2023

in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where apptoptiate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset cutrent tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

6.12Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with the banks, other short term highly liquid
investments with original maturity of three months and less.

6.13 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related setvice ate classified as short-term
employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, shott-term bonus, incentives etc. These ate measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Defined contribution plan

Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further
obligations. Such benefits are classified as defined contribution plan as the Company does not catty any further
obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis. In addition, contributions are made to employees'
state insurance schemes, which are also defined contribution plans recognized and administered by the Government
of India. The Company's contributions to these schemes are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plan

The Company has unfunded gratuity as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employee will receive on
retitement is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service and final salary. The gratuity plan provides a
lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or tetmination of employment, of an
amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The Company’s liability is
actuatially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. This is based on standard
rates of inflation, salary growth rate and mortality.

Discount factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to market yields on government bonds that
have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. Service cost and net interest expense on the
Company’s defined benefit plan is included in employee benefits expense.

Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the defined benefit obligation are included in other
comprehensive income.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides benefit of compensated absences to its employees (as per policy) which are in the nature
of long-term employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to be
availed more than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed
by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Service cost and net
interest expense on the Company’s othe 6 '
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Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are also recorded
in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses atise.

6.14 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. When the grant relates to a revenue item, it
is recognized in statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the related costs are
expensed. The grant can either be presented separately or can deduct from related teported expense. Government
grant relating to capital assets are recognised initially as deferred income and are credited to statement of profit and
loss on a straight line basis over the expected lives of the related asset and presented within other operating income.

6.15 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of past
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions required to settle are reviewed regularly and ate adjusted where
necessary to reflect the current best estimates of the obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present values,
where the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed unless the likelihood of an outflow of resoutces is remote and thete is a possible
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.

Contingent assets are disclosed only when inflow of economic benefits therefrom is probable and recognize only
when realization of income is virtually certain.

6.16 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events
including a bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

6.17 Rounding off amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as pet the
requitement of Schedule IIT, unless otherwise stated.

6.18 Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting policy.
This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items
which are mote likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than
those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant
notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

) Recognition of deferted tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on
an assessment of the probability of the Company’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilized.

b) Evaluation of indicatots for impaitment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and jn actors which could result in
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Contingent liabilities — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities.
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Impaitment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, existing matket conditions as well as forward looking estimates, the management assesses the
expected credit losses on outstanding receivables. Further, management also considers the factors that may
influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with industry and country in
which the customer operates.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Vatiation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Useful lives of depreciable/amottisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties
in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets.

Leases — The Cotnpany evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS
116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing
the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the
lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend
the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate
a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to
exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company
revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors
including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be
reasonable under the citcumstances.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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7B Right of use asscts

( in lakhs)
Particulars Leaschold land
Gross block
As at 1 April 2021/31 March 2022/31 March 2023 7,429.73
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2021 524.40
Charge for the year* 262.20
Balance as at 31 March 2022 786.60
Charge for the year® 262,20
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,048.80
Net black as at 31 March 2022 6,643.13

6,380.93

Net block as at 31 March 2023

* Details of depreciation capitalised: (® in lakhs)
Particulars Amount

31 March 2023 131.31

31 March 2022 228.56

(This space has been intentionally lft blank)
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8 Intangible assets (% in lakhs)
3 Softwate
Gross block
Balance as at 1 April 2021 10.04
Additions 120.57
Balance as at 31 March 2022 130.61
Additions 42.37
Balance as at 31 Match 2023 : 172,98

Accumulated amottisation

Balance as at 01 April 2021 0.68
Charge for the year 5.78
Balance as at 31 March 2022 6.46
Chatge for the year 29.30
Balance as at 31 March 2023 35.76
Net block as at 31 March 2022 . 124.15

Net block as at 31 Match 2023 : 137,22
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Note -9

Other financial assets - non-current
(Unsecured considered good)
Security deposits

Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months*

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

(X in lakhs)

® inlakhs)

*Bank deposits (excluding interest accrued) of T 427.78 lakhs (31 March 2022: T 106.64) arc pledged against Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA).

Other financial assets - current
(Unsecured considered good)
Unbilled revenue

Security deposits

Other receivables

Note - 10

Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets arising on account of @
Employee benefits
Right of use assets and lease liabilities
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciaion

Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of :
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Notes:

69.14 B0.34
431.69 107.17
500.83 187.51
118,57 6.60

7.10 9.10

64.51 96.96
190,18 112.66

10.87 1255
143.62 387.20
626.85 46.22
781,34 416.06

(781.34) (446.06)
(781.34) (446.06)

(i) The Company has unabsorbed business losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) of T 12,058.61 lakhs (31 March 2022: % 6,548.98 lakhs). The unabsorbed business losses are available
for utilisation for a maximum period of eight years, which is yet to expire. The Company has recognised deferred tax asset on certain items, only to the extent of deferred tax liabilities

(ii)

Details of expiry related to brought forward losses/unabsorbed depreciation:

As at 31 March 2023 (% in lakhs)
Particulars 0-1ycars 1-5 years More than 5 years No expiry date ‘Total
Unabsorbed losses - 6,489.53 . 6,489.53
Unabsorbed depreciation - 5,569.08 5,569.08
As at 31 March 2022 (X in lakhs)
Particulars 0-1years 1-5 years More than 5 years No expiry date Total
Unabsotbed losses - 4,348.08 = 4,348.08
Unabsorbed depreciation - % 2,200.90 2,200.90
Caption wise movement in deferred tax assets as follows:
(% in lakhs)
Particulars 1 April 2022 Recognised in other Recognised in 31 March 2023
comprehensive income | statement of profit and
loss
Assets
Employee benefits 12,55 - (1.68) 10.87
Right of usc asscts and lease liabilitics 387.29 - (243.67) 143.62
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation 46,22 = 580.63 626.85
Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (446.06) = (335.28) (781.34)
Total = - - -
( in lakhs)
Particulars 1 April 2021 Recognised in other Recognised in 31 March 2022
comprehensive income | statement of profit and
loss
Asscts
Employee benefits 0.92 - 11.63 12.55
Right of use assets and lcase liabilities 38.59 - 348.70 387.29
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation - - 46.22 46,22
Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (39.51) - (106.55) (H46.06)
Tatal - - - -

(This space hus been infentionally left blank)
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Note - 11
Income-tax assets (net)
Prepaid tax (nef)

Note - 12

Other non-current assets
Capital advances

Prepaid expenses

Other current assets

Prepaid expenses

Advance to material/service providers
Advance to employees

Note - 13
Inventories*#

Pharmacy, medical and laboratory consumables related to in-patient services '

Pharmacy and medical consumables related to sale of pharmacy products to out-patients

General stores

* valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower
# exclusive charge by way of hypothecation, both present and future

Note - 14
Trade reccivables®
Considered good - unsecured

* Refer note 41B for ageing details.

Note - 15

Cash and cash cquivalents

Balances with banks in current accounts*
Cash on hand

*lucludes balances with e-wallet and credit card comipanies amonnting fo T 35.34 lakhs (31 March 2022: T 12.61 lakhs)

Note - 16
Other bank balances

Bank deposits with maturity of more than thrce months and upto twelve months*

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(% in lakhs) ( in lakhs)
156.15 10.17
156.15 10.17
193.67 509.30
24.27 21.90
217.94 531.20
137.52 99.73
53.92 14.76
0.69 0.05
192.13 114.54
391.16 288.73
72.85 23.93
114.65 24.13
578.66 336.79
466.26 2.19
466.26 2.19
2,507.29 292577
19.06 11.63
2,526.35 2,937.40
746.81 705.03
746.81 705.03

*Bank deposits (excluding interest accured) of T 705.02 lakhs (31 March 2022: T 598,01 lakhs) are pledged against Debt Service Reserve Account (‘DSRAY).

(This space has been intentionally left blunk)
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Notie - 17 As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Equity share capital
Authorised . Number (X in lakhs) Number ® in lakhs)
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each* 325,000,000 32,500.00 300,000,000 30,000.00
32,500.00 30,000.00

*During the year, pursuant to the provisions of section 13 and section 61 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the authorised share capital of the Company has
been increased from T 3,000,000,000 divided into 300,000,000 equity shares of face value of T 10 each to ¥ 3,250,000,000 divided into 325,000,000 equity shares of face value of T 10
cach.

Issued, subscribed and paid up

Equity shares of € 10 each 304,407,407 - 30,440.74 297,000,000 29,700.00
30,440.74 29,700.00

Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity shares

Balance at the beginning of the year 297,000,000 29,700.00 195,000,000 19,500.00

Add: Issued during the year 7,407 407 740.74 102,000,000 10,200.00

Balance at the end of the year 304,407,407 30,440.74 297,000,000 29,700.00

Share of the Company held by the Holding Company

Name of the equity sharcholder Number Yo Number %

Global Health Limited {formerly known as Global Health Private Limited)* 304,407,407 100.00% 297,000,000 100.00%

+Out of this, 100 shares are held by Dr. Naresh Trehan as a nominee of the Holding Company.,

Terms and rights attached to equity shares :
Equity shares have a face value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.

Details of promoter sharcholding
For details, refer note 41D.

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
( in lakhs) (T in lakhs)

Note - 17
Other equity
Capital contribution from the Holding Company 942.80 846.55
Reserves and surplus

Securities premiun 1,259.26 -

Retained carnings (12,102.83) (9,170.56)

(9,900.77) (8,324.01)

Nature and purpose of reserves

Capital contribution

Capital contribution represents primarily the corporate guarantee facility provided by the Holding Company and the amount of Served for India Scheme ('SFIS) licence transferred by
the Holding Company to the Company. Additionally, ¥ 742.80 lakhs has been credited to equity in last provision of Ind AS towards recognition of corporate guarantee (financial
guarantec) balance provided by the Holding Company.

(ii) Retained earnings

Retained earnings comprises of current period and prior periods undistributed earnings or losses after tax.

(iii) Sccurities premium

A

B

Securitics premium represents premium on issue of shares. This balance can be utilised in accordance with provisions of the Act.

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(% in lakhs) (¥ in lakhs)
Note - 18
Borrowings non-current
Sccured loans
Term loans
From bank [refer note (a) below] 26,609.26 23,454.95
Less: current maturities of long-term borrowings 736.07 107.10
25,873.19 23,047.85
Deferred payment liabilities [refer note (b) below] 3,373.03 2,819.38
3,373.03 2,819.38
29,246.22 25,867.23
Borrowings - current
Secured loans
Term loans
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 736.07 407.10
736.07 407.10

(This space lus been intentionally loft blank)
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Notes:

(a) Repayment terms (including current maturities) and security details of term loan from banks :

-

The term loan is sccured by way of hypothecation of all present and future movable property, plant and equipment of the borrower, including without limitation, the stocks, book debts,
plant and equipment, receivables, bills of exchange, movable fittings, medical cquipment's, computer hardware, computer software, machinery spares, tools and accessorics and other
movables, both present and future whether now lying loose, or in cases or which are now lying or stored in or about or shall thereafter from time to time during the continuance of the
security of the loan be brought into or upon be stored or be in or all the borrower's premises, warchouses, stockyards, godowns, but not limited to those movable asscts of the borrower.

2 The Holding Company has given a corporate guarantee for the sanctioned facility of T 36,500 lakhs.
3 Interest is charged at the rate of the bank's six month marginal cost of funds based lending rate (MCLRY)+0.05% pee annum payable on monthly basis.
4 Loan is repayable in 36 quarterly instalments starting from October 2022,
5 Reconciliation of loan balance with transaction costs:
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(¥ in lakhs) (¥ in lakhs)
Graoss balance 27,236.49 24,060.91
Less: Transaction costs (627.23) (605.96)
Net halance : 26,609.26 23,454.95
(b) This represents liability for medical equipment purchased on defereed payment terms to be repaid in August 2024.
The changes in the Company's liabilities arising from financing activities arc summarised as follows: . (% in lukhs)
Particul Borrowings* Finance cost Total
1 April 2021 ) 15,930.00 - 15,930.00
Cash flows:
- Proceeds from borrowings 8,130.91 . 4,130.91
- Interest expensc (including capitalisation) - 1,632.12 1,672.71
- Interest paid - (1,632.12) (1,632.12)
- Non-cash adjustments (605.96) z (605.96)
31 March 2022 23,454.95 - 23,495.54
1 April 2022 23,454.95 - 23,454.95
Cash flows
- Proceeds from borrowings 3,500.00 = 3,500.00
- Repayment of borrowings (324.42) - (324.42)
- Interest expensc (including capitalisation) = 2,136.40 2,136.40
- Interest paid - (2,136.40) (2,136.40)
- Non-cash adjustments X (21.27) - (21.27)
31 March 2023 26,609.26 - 26,609.26
+ This includes current maturities of non-current borrowings and current borrowings. i
Note « 19
A Lease liabilitics
Lease liabilitics - non-current (refer note 40) 8,011.53 7,132.28
8,01L.53 7,132.28
B Lease liabilities
Lease liabilitics - current (cefer note 40} 478.90 149.69
478.90 449.69
The changes in the Company’s lease liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows: (¥ in lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Lease liabilitics as at 1 April 2021 (current and non-current) 7,873.62
Interest on lease liabilities T46.09
Payment of lease liabilities (437.74)
Lease liabilities as at 31 March 2022 (current and non-current) 8,181.97
Interest on lease liabilities T774.65
Payment of lease liabilities (466.19)
Leasc liabilities as at 31 March 2023 (current and non-current) 8,490.43

(This spuice bus been intentionally lft blak)
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As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(¥ in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
Note -20
A Provisions - non-current
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (refer note 38) 48.36 s
Compensated absences 44.40 26.03
92.76 49,26
B Provisions - current ’
Provision for employce bencfits:
Gratuity (refer note 38) 0.21 0.07
Compensated absences 0.10 0.56
Provision for contingencies* 550.21 550,21
550.52 550,84
*The provision for contingencies pertains to the estimate of the present probable abligation of cash outflow towards delay in completion of the under construction facility
Note -21
A Other non-current liabilitics
Deferred income® 139.22 -
139.22 -
B Other current liabilities
Payable to statutory authorities 141.31 103.60
Advance from customers 77.56 17.99
Deferred income® . 11.88 -
Other liabilities 349 +4.24
234,24 125.83
| *Deferred income classified into
Non-current portion 139.22
Current portion 11.88 -
151.10 -
*Deferred income (on account of other grants)
Opening balance -
Grants received during the year 154.06
Less : Released to statement of profit and loss (2.96) -
151.10 n
Note - 22
‘Trade payables®
A Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises¥ : 196.53 60.03
196.53 60.03
*Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act, 2006”) arc as follows: (T in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1) |the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year; 196.53 60.03
ii) |the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond - =
the appointed day during each accounting year;
iii) {the amount of intecest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed - -
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act;
iv) {the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and 0.28 0.11
| v) |the amount of further intecest remaining duc and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the intesest dues as -
| above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23,
| B Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Due to related parties 21.02 -
Due to others 1,842.90 748.24
. 1,863,92 748.24
“ Refer note 41C for ageing details.
Note - 23
Other financial liabilities - current
Capital creditors 1,771.72 1.752.89
[ Employee related payables 10.20 6.47
Security deposits 5.00

1,786.92 1,759.36
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Note - 24
Revenue from operations
Income from healthcare services
In patient
Out patient
Income from sale of pharmacy products to out-patients
Sale of pharmacy products
Other operating revenue
Grant income

Note - 25

Other income

Interest income on bank deposits

TInterest on refund of income-tax

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)
Foreign exchange - gain (ner)

Revenue share from food court

Rental income

Miscellaneous income

Note - 26A

Cost of materials consumed

Pharmacy, medical and laboratory consumables related to in-patient services
Opening stock

Add: Purchases

Less: Closing stock

Materials consumed

General stores
Opening stock

Add: Purchases

Less: Closing stock
Materials consumed

Note - 26B
Purchases of stock-in-trade

Note - 26C

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Opening stock

Less: Closing stock

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Note - 27

Employee benefits expense

Salarics and wages*

Contribution to provident fund and other funds*
Staff welfare expenses

* Refer note TA(jii) for capitalisation details.

Note - 28

Finance costs

Interest on term loans*

Interest on lease liabilitics

Other borrowing costs

Interest on deferred payment liabilitics

* Refer note 7A(ji) for capitalisation details.

Note - 29

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on right of use assets*
Amortisation of intangible asscts

* Refer note TA(jii) for capitalisation details.

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(X in lakhs)

(¥ in lakhs)

13,665.05 1,856.56
2,787.01 512.01
491,05 8.72
2.96 :
16,946.07 2,377.29
47.99 14.30
0.75 -
- 274
g 150,57
24.44 e
426 g
46.64 15.76
124.08 213.37
288.73 240
2,972.41 813.75
(391.16) (288.73)
2,869,98 52142
24.13 043
136.02 116.79
(114.65) (24.13)
4550 93.00
2,915.48 62051
370.87 3171
23.93 3
72.85 23.93
(48.92) (23.93)
2,842.47 1,214.77
166.45 72.92
25.86 1.4
3,034.78 1,289.10
1,164.41 262.01
774.65 746.09
13.84 25.21
240.36 130.20
2,193.26 1,163.51
2,304.63 601.00
130.89 33.64
2030 578
2,464.82 640,42




Global Health Patliputra Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note - 30A
Retainers and consultants fee
Retainers and consultants fee

Note - 30B
Other expenses®
Power and fuel
Lease rent :
Premises
Equipments**
Repairs and maintenance:
Equipments
Building
Rates and taxes
Recruitment expenses
Insurance
Travelling and conveyance
Communication expenses
Payments to the auditor as:
Auditor (including taxes)
For other services (including taxes)
For reimbursement of expenses (including taxes)
Pantry expenses
Laundry expenses
Security expenises
Facility management expenses
Advertisement and sales promotion
Qutsourced services
Legal and professional
Printing and stationery
Directors' sitting fees
Bank charges
Foreign exchange - loss (net)
Miscellaneous expenses

* Refer note TA(iil) for capitalisation details.

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(% in lakhs) (¥ in lakhs)

4,800.05 1,674.80
4,800.05 1,674.80
517.20 235,61
581.15 207.08
365.29 53.81
186.55 92,12
60.60 10.35
13478 216.07
28.21 41.93
32,57 9.56
69.98 71.03
28.30 1.7
20.65 3.90

0.73 -
2.27 0.15
301.82 T4.58
98.80 19.85
286.44 160.12
726.56 350.73
187.53 68.58
99.91 2512
40.35 50.91
102.37 19.54
275 0.50
89.06 14.55

313.29 -
5.01 25.98
4,282.77 1,775.84

*¥This, inter alia, includes expenses pertaining to the lease rentals (towards the lease of the cquipment) including the expenses pertaining to the related laboratory consumables. Since the
bifurcation of expense between the lease (towards the equipment rent) and the non-lease component (towards consumables) is not available with the Company, hence, in accordance with

Tnd AS 116 ‘Leases’ the Company has opted to present the entire expense as lease expenses.

Note - 31

Tax expenses

Current tax

Income-tax expense gnised in the t of profit and loss

The major components of the reconciliation of expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of the Company at 25.168% and the reported tax expense in the statement of

profit and Joss are as follows:

Accounting loss before income-tax
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2022; 25.168%)

Tax impact of unabsorbed business losses (including unabsorbed depreciation)

Income-tax expense

Note - 32
Earmnings per share (EPS)

(2,942.96)
(740.68)

740.68

(4,581.,30)
(1,153.02)

1,153.02

Barnings per share (EPS) is determined based on the net profit/(loss) attributable to the sharcholders. Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the year,

except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

Loss attributable to equity sharcholders for basic and diluted EPS (2,942.96) (4,581.30)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 301,403,856 243,654,795
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the clfect of dilution 301,403,856 243,654,795
Earnings per equity share
Basic (0.98) (1.88)
Diluted (0.98) (1.88)
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Note - 33

Fair value disclosuses

Fair value hierarchy

‘The following explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial i To provide an i
its financial instruments into the three levels prescrbed under the accounting standard.

abuut the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has dlassified

Level It quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for Gnancial instruments.
Level 2; inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asser o liability, cither directly or inditectly,
Level 3: unobscevable inputs for the asset or liability.
Valuati Tini used to d ine fair value
‘The fair value of the financial assers and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset and paid to teansfer a ability in an ordery transaction between market participants. The following methods were used
to estimate the faic values:-

- Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, other current financial assets, trade payables and other current Bnancial liabilities: Approximate their cacrying amounts largely due to the short-tenn maturitics of these
instruments.

- Borrowings taken by the Company are as per the Company's ceedit and liquidity risk assessment and there is no comparable instrument having the similac terms and conditions with related security being pledged and hence the
carrying value of the borrowings represents the best estimate of fair value.

Fair value of assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair value are disclosed (¥ in lakhs]
© 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Particulars - -
Amortised cost Fair value Amortised cost Fair value
Financial assets
Trade receivables 466.26 466.26 219 219
Cash and cash equivalents 252635 2,526.35 293740 2.937.40
Other bank balances T46.81 746.81 705.03 705.03
Other financial assets 691.01 691.01 300.17 300.17
'Tatal financial assets 4,430.43 4,430.43 3,944.78 3,944.78
Financial liabilides .
Horrowings 29,982.29 29,082.29 26274.33 26,274.33
Trade payables 2,060.45 2,060.45 BOB.28 808.28
Other financial liabilities 1,786.92 1,786.92 1,759.36 1,759.36
Toral financial liabilities 33,829.66 33,820.66 28,841.97 28,841.97
Note - 34
Financial sisk management
Financlal instruments by category* (X in lakhs)
Particulars Amortised cost
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Financial asscls v
Trade receivables 466.26 19
Cash and cash equivalents 2,526.35 293740
Other bank balances 681 705.03
Other financial assets 691.01 300.17
‘Total financial assets 4,430.43 3,944.78
Financial labilities
Barrowing 2098229 26.274.33
Trade payables 2,060.45 508,28
Lease liabilities B490.43 H,181.97
Other financial liabilities 1,786.92 1,750.36
Total financial liabilities 42,320.09 37,023.94

*There are no financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value through other comprchensive income or fair value through profit and loss.

Risk management
“The Company's activities are exposed to liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishnent and oversight of the Company’s sisk management frunework. This note explains
the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact i the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Mi Manage

Credit nsk Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other| Credit ratings Divessification of bank depaosits, credit limits and letrers of credit
bank balances and other financial assets

Liquidity risk |Borrowings, trade payables and other financiall Cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit lines and bormowing facilitics
liabilities

Market ask — foreign exchange Future commerdial transactions, recognised financial] Cash fow forccasting sensitivity analysis Forward foreign exchange contracts
assets and liabilitics not denominated in Indian rupee

Markel risk — interest ate Long tenn borrowings at variable rates Sensifivity analysis Diversification of borrowin,

Credit risk

Credit rivk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial asset fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics

of each finaacidl asset The carrying amounts of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure.

A default on a financial asset is when the countecparty fails to make contractual payments as per agreed tenns, This definition of default is d ined by idecing the business envi in which entiry uperates and other macro-
economic factors.

“The Company has a credit risk management policy in place to limit credit losses due to non-perfonnance of counterparties. The Company monitors its exposure to credit risk on an ongoing basis. Assets ace written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Where loans and receivables are written off, the Company continues ro engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the dues.

Trude seeivables
‘The Company dosely monitors the credit-wonthiness of the receivables through intemal systems that are configured 1o define credit limits of custumers, thereby, limiting the credit risk to pre-calculared amounts. This is the first full year
of vperations of the Company and its outstanding receivables are very minimal and accordingly, the Company does not foresee any ceedit nisk at this stage.

Curb and cash equavalents and other bank balamces
Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only investing in depusits with highly rated banks and Gnancial institutiuns and diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different banks. Credit risk is
cunsidered low because the Company deals with highly rated banks and financial institution.

Osber fiuancial avels
Other fnancial assets measured at amortized cost includes security deposits and other receivables. Credit risk related to these financial assets is managed by monitoring the eecoverability of such amounts continuously, while at the same
time intemal contrul system are in place to ensure the amounts are within defined limits. Credit risk is considered low because the Company is in pussession of the underdying asset. Further, the Company creates provision by assessing
individual financial asset for expectation of any credit loss basis 12 month expected credit loss model.

(This space bas been intentionally left biank)
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(i) Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses

The Company provides for 12 month or lifetime expected credit losses for following financial assets —

As at 31 March 2023

R in lakhs)

Estimated gross
carrying amount at default

Particulars

Expected credit losses

Carrying amount net of

impairment provision

Trade receivables 466.26 166,26
Cash and cash equivalents 2,526.35 2,526.35
Other bank balances T746.81 T46.81
Other financial assets 691.01 - 691.01
As ar 31 March 2022 (R in lakhs)
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit losses Carrying amount net of impainment provision
carrying amount at default

Trade reccivables 219 - 219
Cash and cash equivalents 293740 2,93740
Other bank balances 705.03 0503
Other financial assets 300.17 0017

(B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are settled by deliveng cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing

liquidity i$ to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due.

The Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintai ilability under ¢ d credit lines. M.

(including the undrawn borrowing facilities, as mentioned bflnu]

Marurities of financial liabilides

The tables below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant matusity groupings based on their conteacrual maturities.

monitors the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows

(X in lakhs)

As at 31 March 2023 Less than 1 year 1-3 years More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives

496.50 1,091.91 27,649.24 29,237.65
B g 736.07 6,858.06 23,213.32 30,807 45
Trade payables 2,060.45 & 206045
Other financial liabilities 1,786.92 - - 1,786.92
Total 5,079.94 7,949.97 50,862.56 63,892.47

R in lakhs)
31 March 2022 Less than | year 1-3 years More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives
Lease liabilities 466.20 1,025.27 28,212.39 29,703.86
Borrowings 472.50 9,942.20 17,217.16 27,631.87
Trade payables 808.28 e - HOB 28
Other financial liabilities 1,759.36 i - 1,759.36
Total 3,506.34 10,967.47 45,429.55 59,903.36
The Company alsv has access to the following undrawn borrowing from banks. (T in lakhs)
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Undrawn burrowing facilities 9,263.51 6,046.77

(C) Market risk

(i) The Company has intemational transactions and is exposed to forcign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions (imports). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commerial transactions and recognised assets and
Jiabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s functional currency. The Company has not hedged its foreign exchange payables for the year ended 31 March 2023,

Forcign currency risk exposur

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Foreign currency INR Foreign INR
(in lakhs) currency (% in lakhs)

Liabilities
Defecred payment liabilities EURO 3,737.25 EURO 3,570.95
Capital creditors usn 53.80 UsD -
Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises from foreign currency denominated financial instrumients. (¥ in lakhs)
Particulars Currency As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Exchange rate Exchange rate Exchange rate increase | Exchange rate decrease

increase by 1% decrease by 1% by 3% by 3%
Liabilities
Deferred payment liabilities EURO (261.61) 261.61 (107.13) 107.13
Capital creditors UsD 1M 377 -

(i) Interest rate risk
The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of seporting year are as follows:
The Company’s vasiable rate burruwing is subject to interest rate risk. Below is the overall expusure of the burry (R in lakhs)
Particulass Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Variable rate borrowing 26,609.26 23,454.95
Total barrowings 26,609.26 23,454.95
Sensitivity
Profit o loss is sensitive to highee/lower interest expense from hormowings as  result of changes in interest eates. (X in lakhs)
Pasticulars For the year ended Par the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Interest rates —increase by 100 basis points (266.09) (234.55)
Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points 266.09 234.55

(This space buas beew intentionall lft blank)
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Note - 35

Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

- To ensure Company’s ability to continue as a going concem; and
-To maintain optimum capital structure and to reduce cost of capital.

Management assesses the capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure, The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions and the sisk characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requitements. The Company has complied with debt
covenants as per the terms of the borrowing facility arrangements. The Company manages its capital requirements by oversecing the gearing ratio:

(Z in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Total borrowings (excluding interest accrued) 29,982.29 26,274.33
Total equity 20,539.97 21,375.99
Debt to equity ratio s 145.97% 122.92%
Note - 36

(i) Capital commitment (¥ in lakhs)
[Particulars Asat3IMarch 2023 | Asat31March2022 |
[Peoperty, plant and and capital work-in-progress (net of advances) 14,259.78 | 10,842.35 |

(ii) Other commitment

(% in lakhs)

| Particulars

Asat 31 March 2023 |

As at 31 March 2022

| Bank guarantee

500.00 |

1,500.23 |

(This space bas been intentionally ift blank)
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| Note - 37

Related party transactions

In accordance with the requirements of Tnd AS 24, Related party disclosuces, the names of the related parties along with the aggregate transactions and year end balances with them as identified by the management Tave
been given below:

(i)  Individual exercising ultimate control over the Company*
Dr. Naresh Trehan

* Basis the rights avallable as per Articles of Association, Dr. Naresh Trehan was exercising control over the Holding Company before listing of the equity shares of the Holding Company. Post listing, basis the
rights available as per the amended Asticles of Association, Dr. Naresh Teehan is now exercising, significant influence over the Holding Company. However, since Dr. Trehan was exercising control over the
Helding Company and Company for part of the year, the Company has disclosed all related party relationships and transactions for the entice year pectaining to Dr. Naresh Trehan.

(i)  Holding Company

Globa Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Peivate Limited)

(iii)  Fellow subsidiary
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formely known as Global Health Pharmaceutical Private Limited)

(iv)  Key management personnel (KMP)
31 March 2023

31 March 2022

() Dr. Naresh Trehan

(1) Mr. Sunil Sachdeva

(i) Me. Sanjeev Kumac

(iv) Mr. Pankaj Prakash Sahni
(¥) Ms. Praveen Mahajan

() Dr. Naresh Trehan

(i) Mr. Sunil Sachdeva (from 10 May 2021)

(iif) Me. Sanjeev Kumar

(iv) Mir. Pankaj Peakash Sahni

(¥) Ms. Praveen Mahajan (from 9 September 2021)

(vi) Mr. Ravi Shankar Singh (from 01 January 2022)
(vi)) Mr. Hans Raj Sacaswat (from 26 July 2021)

| (vi) Mr. Ravi Shankar Singh
| (vil) Me. Hans Raj Sarswat

Enterprises under the control/joint control of KMPs and their relatives or where KMPs are common, with whom tra have been und or whose bala are outstandi
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

() IFAN Global India Private Limited (1) IFAN Global India Private Limited

(i) Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited

(iif) Devyani I l Limited

| () Transactions with related parties carried out in the ordinary course of business: (T in lakhs)

S, Particulars Related parties Total
No. Year Holding Company | Fellow subsidiary | Enterprises under the
control of KMPs and
their relatives or where
KMPs are common
1 |Outsourced services
Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited) 31 March 2023 41.08 - - 41.08
31 March 2022 - = - -
| 2 |Revenue from healthcare services
| GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formely known as Global Health 31 Masch 2023 | - 0.97] - 0.97
j Phanmaceutical Private Limited) 31 March 2022 | - | = l - =
| 3 |Issue of equity share capital (including securitics p )
| Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited) 31 March 2023 | 2,000.00] -] -] 2,000.00
3 March 2022 | 10,200.00 | -1 -1 10,200.00
4 |Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited) 31 March 2023 | 13.60 - -] 13.60
31 March 2022 | 9.42] -] -1 9.42
5 |Purchase of medicines and consumables .
Global Health Limited (formely known as Global Health Private Limited) 31 March 2023 | 6.32] - -1 6.32
31 March 2022 | -1 -1 -] -
6 |Retai and ltants fee - medical
Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited) 31 March 2023 13.55] -1 -1 13.55
| 31 March 2022 -1 -1 -1 -
| 7 |Exp imb T ing to initial public offer
| Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited) 31 Masch 2023 55.70] -] -1 55.70
| 31 March 2022 - -] -1 .
8 |Sale of medicines and consumables
| Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited) 31 March 2023 | 1.56] -1 -1 1.56
31March 2022 | ’ - -] -] -
9 |Recruitment expenses
TFAN Global India Private Limited 31Macch 2023 | -1 - 9.48 9.48
31 Macch 2022 | - -] 19.96 | 19.96
10 |Revenue share from food court
Devyani Intemnational Limited 31 March 2023 -1 - 24.35] 2435
31 March 2023 | -] -] - | -
11 |Security deposits received
Devyani International Limited 31 Macch 2023 [ -] = | 5.00] 5.00
31 March 2022 | -1 B < | =
12 |Director's sitting fecs
Ms. Praveen Mahajan 31 March 2023 | -1 -] 2.25] 2.25
31 March 2022 | - -] 050 0.50
I 13 |Revenue from patients covered under tic-ups
| Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited 31 March 2023 I | i 50.70] 50.70
| 31 March 2022 | -1 - = =
14 |Salaries and other benefits®
i M. Hans Raj Saraswat 31 March 2023 B B 38.05 38.65
| 31 Masch 2022 - - 20.38 29.38
! Dr. Ravi Shankar Singh 31 March 2023 . . GV48 6948
! 31 March 2022 = 2 3 =
1 *Gratuty and ted absences are determined by independent actuary for all the employees of the Conmpany and hence, employee wive spit is not available.
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Global Health Patliputra Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(b) Closing balance with related parties in the ordinary course of ¢

(% in lakhs)

S, Particulars Related parties lotal
| Ne. Year Haulding Company | Fellow subsidiary | Enterprises under the
control of KMPs and
| their relatives or where
| KMPDPs are common
| 1 |Equity share capital
Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited) 31 March 2023 300,74 | 2| -1 30,440.74 |
3 March2022 | 29,700.00 | -1 - | 29,700.00
2 |Capital contribution from the Holding Company (refer note (¢) below)
| Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited) 3 March 2023 | 942.80 | - -] 942,80
31 March 2022 | 846,55 | - -1 B46.55
3 [Trade payables
Global Health Limited (formerdly known as Global Health Private Limited) 31 March 2023 20.87 - 20.87
31 March 2022 - - - -
IFAN Global India Private Limited 31 March 2023 - - 0.15 0.15
31 Macch 2022 - - 5.00 5.00
4 |Trade receivables
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited {formely known as Global Health 31 March 2023 - 0.88 - 0.88
Pharmaceutical Private Limited) 31 March 2022 = - - =
Raksha Health Tnsurance TPA Private Liniited 31 March 2023 - 1537 15.37
31 March 2022 - - - -
Devyani Intemational Limited 31 March 2023 - - 357 3.57
31 March 2022 - - - =
5 |Other receivables
Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited) 31 March 2023 I 5098 - B 50.98
3MMarch 2022 | -1 - -1 -
6 ISccurity deposits
Devyani Intemational Limited 31 March 2023 | - - T 5.00] 5.00
31 March 2022 | -1 -] -1 -

During the previous yeas, the Company has withdrawn performance guarantee of T 1,500 lakhis given to the Government of Bihac by the Holding Company. The new performance guarantee has been given by

the Company itself.

During the previous year, the Holding Company has withdeawn the undertaking (confirming infusion of equity ot unsecuced loan in case of shortfall in serviting credit facilities) given to the bank. Instead, the
Holding Company has given a corporate guarantee for the sanctioned facility of T 36,500 lakhs.

SFIS License has been teansfecred by Holding Company for nil consideration and creedited 1o equity. Additionally, T 742.80 lakhs has been credited to equity as per provision of Ind AS wwards recogmtion of
corporate guarantee (financial guarantee) balance provided by the Holding Company as mentioned above.

All material related party transactions are at arms length and in the ordinary course of business.

(This space has been intentionally lft blunk)
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Note - 38
Employee benefits obligations

A Defined contribution plan

(®in lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Employer’s contribution to provident fund charged to statement of profit and loss*

140.13 62.57
Contribution to employee state insurance scheme charged to statement of profit and loss 26.31 10.35
Total 166.44 72.92

*Contributions are made to recognised provident fund administered by the Govemment of India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations.

limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual or consteuctive obligation.

B Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a pedod of 5 years
amount of gratuity payable on rclimnc.nu’ termination is the employee's Jast deawn basic salary per month computed proportionately

(i) Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

The obligation of the Company is

are eligible for gratuity. The

for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service.

(¥ in lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Preseat value of the obligation at end
Unfunded liability/provision in balance shect

48.57
(4857)

23.30
(23.30)

Bifurcation of present value of obligation - current and non-current

(X in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Current liability 0.21 0.07
Non-current liability 48.36 23.23
Total 48.57 23.30
(i) Amount recognized in other comprehensive income
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Actuarial (gain) /loss
-Changes in demographic assumptions (13.24) -
-Changes in financial assumptions (1.23) 0.98
-Changes in expericnce adjustment 379 (0.64)]
|Actuarial (gain) /loss recognized in other comprehensive income (10.68) 0.34
(iii) Exp gnized in stat, of profit and loss (@ in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 34.35
(Interest cost : 1.69
Expense recognized during the year 36.04
(iv) Movement in the liability recognized in the bal sheet is ag under: (T in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 23.30 1.62
Cursent service cost 3435 21.23
Interest cost 1.69 0.11
Actuarial (gain)/loss (10.69) 0.34
Benefits paid (0.08), -
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 48.57 23.30
(v) For determination of the liability of the Company the following ial assumptions were used:
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Discount rate 7.39%) 7.26%)
Salary escalation rate 8.00%) 8.00%
Retirement age (years) 60 years| 60 years|
Average past service 0.93 0.50
Average age 29.49 years| 30.03 years
Average remaining working life 30.51 years| 29.97 years|
Withdrawal rate
Up to 30 years 21.50% 4.00%
Brom 31 to 44 years 8.40% 3.00%%)
Above 44 years 1.10%4| 2.00%
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of TALM (2012 — 14)
(vi) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undiscounted)
Year As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Oto 1 year 0.21 0.07
1to 2 year 013 0.04
210 3 year 0.39 0.04
3to 4 yeac 3.0t 0.16
4to 5 year 375 0.92
5to 6 year 4.08 0.9%
6 year onwards 81.81 43.70
Gross total 93.38 45.92

(This space hav been intentionally lft blank)
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(vii) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
a) Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 48.57 23.30
Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (3.28) (2.13)
Tmpact due to decrease of 0.50 % 3.63 241
b) Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 48.57 23.30
Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 3.59 238
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (3.28) (2.12)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material. Hence impact of change duc to these have not been calculated.

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retitement and life expectancy are not applicable bring a lump sum benefit on reticement

(viif) Risk

Salary increases

Actual salacy increases will incecase the plan’s liability. Increase in salacy increase rate assumption in futuee valuations will also increase the liability.

Discount rate Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

Mortality and disability

Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilitics.

Withdrawals

liability.

Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact plan’s

Note - 39
Revenue related disclosures
I Disaggregation of revenue
Tabulated below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue:

(X in lakhs)

Description

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(A) Operating revenue
Income from healtheare services

Tn patient 13,665.05 1,856.50
Out patient 2,787.01 512.01
16,452.06 2,368.57
Income from sale of pharmacy products to out-patients
Sale of pharmacy products 491.05 872
Total revenue under Ind AS 115 16,943.11 2,377.29

(¥ in lakhs)

Description

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Income from healthcare services

Government 76.71 .
Non-government 16,375.35 2,368.57
Total operating revenue 16,452.06 2,368.57

Contract balances
"The following table provides information about conteact liabilities from contract with customers:

(X in lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Contract liabilities

Advance from customers 77.56 17.99
‘Total contract liabilities 71.56 17.99
Contract assets

Unbilled revenue 118.57 0.60
Total contract assets 118.57 6.60

Contract asset is the right to receive consideration in exchange for gouds or services transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the entity's obligation to teansfer goods or services to a customer
for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance. Conteact asscts (unbilled receivables) are transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional and contract

liabilities ace recognised as and when the performance obligation is satisfied.

are as foll

III Significant ch in the liabilitics bal:

(¥ in lakhs)

Contract liabilitics - Advance from customers As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Opening balance 17.99 0.04
Add: Addition during the year (16,452.06) (2,368.56)
Less: Amount of revenue recognised during the year 16,511.62 2,386.51
Closing halance 77.56 17.99

IV The aggregate amount of transaction price allocated to the performance obligations (yet to complete) as at 31 March 2023 is 2 77.56 1
advance received from customers against healthcare services. The management expects to further bill and collect the remaining balan
be recognised as revenue in subsequent years as per the policy of the Company.

V' Recondiliation of operating revenue with conteact revenues

akhs (31 Macch 2022 :  17.99 lakhs). This balance represents the
ce of total consideration in the coming, years. These balances will

(¥ in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Contract revenue 16,996.23 2,385.09
Less: Adjustment for discounts (53.12) (7.80)
Total revenue under Ind AS 115 16,943.11 2,371.29

q’ 4
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Note - 40

Lease related disclosures as lessee .

The Company has entered into a concession agreement with the Health Department, Governmient of Bihar on 11 August 2015 for development, operating and maintenance of super speci;

The was subsequently ded

Company is requiced to pay concession fee for 33 years with an escalation clause of 6.5% every year and annual variable fees post commencement of operations.

dity hospital in Patna.

on 16 April 2019. Under the terms of the agreenient, the Govemment of Bilar has given land for the purpose of development of super speciality hospital and the

This arcangement was asscssed as lease arrangenient. Each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. Variable lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate are
excluded from the initial measurement of the lease liability and right of use assets. The Company has presented its right-of-use assets in in the balance sheet separately from other assets.

A Lease

pay not included in of lease liability
The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:

( in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Short-tenm leases 946,44 260,89
B Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2023 is T 466.20 lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥ 437.74 lakhs).
€ Asat31 March 2023, the Company was committed to short-term leases and the total commitment at that date was ¥ 13.02 lakhs (31 March 2022 : 20.19 lakhs).
C  Total expense recagnised during the year
(% in lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Interest on lease liabilities T74.65 746.09
Depreciation on right of use asset* 130.89 33.64
*Net of € 131,31 lakhs (31 March 2022 ¥ 228.56 lakbs) capitalised as part of capital work-in-pragress.

D Bifurcation of lease liabilities in current and non-current (X in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

4) Current liability (amount due within one year) 478.90 449.69
b} Non-current liability (amount due over onc year) 8,011.53 7,732.28

E  Maturity of lease liabilities

(¥ in lakhs)

31 March 2023 Less than 1 year 1-2 ycars 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Lease payments 496.50] 526.77 563.14 27,619.24 29,237.65

Interest expense 17.604 G475 113.07 20,551.80] 20,747.22

Net present value 478,90 464.02] 450.07] 7,097.44 8,490.43
(% in lakhs)

31 March 2022 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Lease payments 466.20 496.50 528.77 28,212.39 29,703.86

Interest expense 16.51 G0.68 106.16 21,338.54 21,521.89

Net present value 449.69 435.82 422.61 6,873.85 8,181.97

B Infc about and ination options as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
Particulars Right of use ussets
Leasehold land
Number of leases —

Range of remaining term (in years)
Average remaining lease term (in years)

25
25

(This spe Buts been intentionally bt blan)
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A

B

o

B

A Change in ratio is Jess thin 25% as compared to previous year and hence, no explanation i re

Note - 41

New disclosures as per the requirements of Diviaion 11 of Schedule HI to the Act

Ageing schedule of capital work-in-progress

(2 in lakhs)

[As a8 31 March 2023 Less than Lyear | 1-2 years 2-3 years [ More than 3 yeats Tatal
|Prujects in progress 920.25 | 5,204.00 | 3,201.80 | - 932605 |
(X in lakhs)
31 March 2022 Less than 1 year | 1-2ycars | 2-3 yeara | Moie than 3ycars Total
Frojects in progress 10,711.57 | 68132 | 7,319.69 | 5 2484458 |
Ageing schedule of trade receivables
(X in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2023 O ling fram the due date of payment Total
Not due Less than 6 months 6 months-1 year 1-2years 2-3years Maore than 3 years
Undisputed taade bl idered good - 430.09 36.17 - - 166,26
Total trade receivables - 430.09 : 3617 - - - 466.26
Unbilled revenue 118.57 - f - - - - 118.57
(€ in 1akhs)
As at 31 March 2022 0 ding from the due date of payment ‘Total
Not due Leas than 6 months 6 months-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mote than 3 years
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good - 219 = * - - 219
Fatal trade receivables - 219 . - - - )
Unbilled revenue 6.60 - - 3 i % .60
Ageing schedule of trade payahles
(R in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2023 Outstanding from the duc date of payment Total
Not due Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years Marc than 3 yeans
Micea, simall and medium entesprises 174.50 2203 - - - 196,53
Others 1,601.08 260.56 175 053 1,863.92
[Total 1,775.58 28259 1.75 0.53 - 2,060.45
@ in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2022 Outstanding from the due date of payment
Nut diie Lcas than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years ‘T'utal
Mictw, small and medium enterprises 45.34 1470 - - 60.04
Others 73020 17.52 053 - : 74825
Total 775,54 322 0.53 - - 808.29
Details of promoter sharcholding
Name of promoter 31 Masch 2023 31 March 2022
Number of shares % of total shares % change during theyear | Number of sharcs % of total shares % change during the
Global Health Limited (formedy known as Glohal 304,407,307 100.00% = 296,999,200 100.00% =
1Health Private Limited)
Dr. Naresh Techan 100 0.00% 0.00% 100 0.00% 007
Details related to borrawings sccured against curcent asscts
The Company has given current assets 15 security for its barrawings, however, as per the loan sgreements, the Company is nat required Lo submit any retum/statement with the banks and hence, this disclosure is not applicable.
Financial ratios 1
[Ratio Measurcment unit Numerator Denominator Asat Asut Change Remarke
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Ratio Ratin
Cumrent ratio Tunes Current assets Current Liabilities 0.60 103 -22%|Note A below
Debt-cquity rativ Tunes Total debt Total equity 146 [ET) 19| Note A below
[Non-current borrowings +
Current horowings]
Ratio Measurement unit Numerator Denuminator (in lakhe) (Tin lakhs) Change Remacke
Ratio Ratia
Dbt service cuversge ratio Tunes Esmings before depreciation [Tuterest expense (including 037 (210 -118%|Note B helow
and amortisation and interest |capitalised) + Principal
[Loss after tax + repayment (including
Depteciation and prepayments)
amortisation expense +
Finance costs (excluding
interest on lease lisbilities)]
Retumn on equily ratio Percentage Loss after tax Average of total equity ~14.04%| -25.11% 4% [Note Chelow
lnventory tumover ratio Tines Casts of materials cousumed |Aversge inventories 707 370 91% | Note I helow
+ Purchases of stock-in-trade|
+ Changes in inventories of
stock-in-trade
Trade receivables tumover ratio Times. Revenue from opeeations | Average trade receivables 7235 1,085.07 -93%|Nate E helow
Tiade payables tumover ratio Times Purchascs + other expenses | Average trade payables 876 1051 -17%| Note A helaw
+ Retainers and consultants
fee
[Purchases = Pharmacy,
medical and lahoratory
consumables related to Tn-
patient services + Phamiscy :
and medical consumables.
related to sale of phamacy
products to out-paticnts]
Nt capital tumover eatio Times Revenue from opecations | Working capital (14.78) 2211 -167% | Note F below
[Current assets - Current
liahilities
Net profit ratio Percentage Loss after tax Reventie from operations 17373 -192.71%) -91%|Note G below
Return on capital employed [Percentage [Eamings before intetest and | Capital emplayed 1.28% 617% 79| Note Chelaw
tax = Loss hefore tax + [Total assets - Current
Finance costs lishilitics + Current f
borrowings]
Return on investment Percentage Interest income on hank | Current and non-current 5.52% 6.28% -12%|Note A helow
deposits hank deposits (Monthly
Avenige)

Note

red to be fumished.

B The change in ratio is pimasly attibutable to higher camings before depreciation and amottisation and interest due to increase in operations during the current year viz a viz the previous year.

€ The change in «.

jo is primasly sttrbutable to reduction in losses due to increase in operations during the current year viz # viz the previous year,

D The change in ratio is prmasly attrbutsble to increase in purchases and related consumption cast due to increase in operations during the current year viz a viz the previous year.

E The change in ratio is primasly attrbutable to increase in operations during the current year viz a vz the previous year.
F The change in ratio is pimasily attributible to negative working capital for the current year.
G The change in ratio is primaly attributable ta higher sevenue and reduced losses due to increase in operations during the current year viz a viz the previous year.
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Note - 42

The chief operating decision maker (CODM) examines the Company’s performance from a service petspective and has identified the Healthcare services as single business segment. The Company is

operating in India which constitutes a single geographical segment. The CODM reviews internal management ceports fo assess the performance of the segment 'Healtheare services', T

teansactions with a single external customer which would amount to ten percent or more of the Company's revenues.

Note - 43

The Company docs not have any Benami Property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companics beyond the statutory yea.
The Company have not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current year.

here are no

‘The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any person or any entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall:

dicectly or indircctly lend or invest in other pecsons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by a or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

provide any guarantec, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiacies.

The Company has not teceived any fund from any person or any entity, including fordgn entities (Funding Pacty) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or atherwise) that the Company

shall:

dicectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by a or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiarics); or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Benefidaries.

The Company does not have any transactions and outstanding balances during the current as well as previous years with Companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or

section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

Note - 44
Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever considered necessary.

The notes to the financial statements including summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of these financial statements.
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